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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay, a local

          3  law to amend the New York City Charter in relation

          4  to authorizing the Department of Transportation to

          5  extend the expiration date of any franchise to

          6  operate and maintain bus shelters.  And we have

          7  Andra Horsch, Director of Intergovernmental Affairs

          8  for the Department of Transportation, to testify.

          9                 Before you give your testimony, I

         10  just want to do some procedural business first.

         11  Joining me this morning are Council members, members

         12  of the Committee, Christine Quinn, Melinda Katz,

         13  Eric Gioia, Mike McMahon, and Al Vann.  We are also

         14  joined by Letitia James and David Yassky.

         15                 Council Member Christine Quinn has

         16  another meeting that she has to go to, so she has

         17  asked to vote now, and I will call on her in one

         18  second.

         19                 Let me just mention that the first

         20  item on the agenda, which we are now discussing, we

         21  will not be voting on at this moment.  We are laying

         22  this over for a vote until Thursday morning before

         23  the Land Use Committee meeting.  We will also not be

         24  voting on 85 Water Street.  We will have the public

         25  hearing on that, but we will also lay the vote over
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          2  at the request of Council Member David Yassky and

          3  Melinda Katz.  We will lay that over until Thursday

          4  morning as well.

          5                 The one item we will be voting on is

          6  the rezoning, Bronx Rezoning, which I understand

          7  everybody is in favor of.  So, it is an easy item.

          8  So, I will ask Counsel to call on Council Member

          9  Quinn.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         11  Member Quinn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you very

         13  much for allowing me to vote early, and I vote aye

         14  on the items that we are voting on today.  Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  The vote

         17  stands 1 in the affirmative, none in the negative,

         18  and no abstentions, and the vote remains open.

         19                 MS. HORSCH:  Good morning, Chairman

         20  Avella and members of the Zoning and Franchise

         21  Subcommittee.  My name is Andra Horsch, and I am the

         22  Director of Intergovernmental Affairs at the New

         23  York City Department of Transportation.  Thank you

         24  for the opportunity to be here today to discuss the

         25  Administration's support for Intro. 494.  This bill
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          2  will amend the City Charter by authorizing DOT with

          3  the approval of the Franchise and Concession Review

          4  Committee to extend the expiration of the franchise

          5  to operate and maintain bus shelters.

          6                 Specifically, Intro. 494 will allow

          7  an extension for an additional year to December

          8  31st, 2005 as the existing Charter language enacted

          9  through Local Law of 57 of 2003 allows the contract

         10  to be extended only through December 31, 2004.

         11  There are approximately 3,000 existing bus stop

         12  shelters City- wide that not only provide a real

         13  services to those utilizing them, but also generate

         14  revenue for the City while at the same time

         15  requiring the franchisee to properly maintain them.

         16                 As you know, the City Council, at the

         17  Mayor's request, authorized a comprehensive

         18  streetscape initiative to grant a non- exclusive

         19  franchise for installing, operating and maintaining

         20  bus stop shelters, self- cleaning automatic public

         21  toilets, newsstand structures and additional public

         22  service structures and displaying advertising on

         23  them.  A request for proposals for the coordinated

         24  street furniture franchise was issued on March 26,

         25  2004.  Proposals were due September 14, 2004 and are
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          2  currently under review.  The process of evaluating

          3  these proposals and negotiating a contract with the

          4  winning proposer, subject to the approval of the

          5  Franchise and Concession Review Committee, is

          6  expected to be completed by next fall.

          7                 In order to ensure a smooth

          8  transition from the existing bus stop shelter

          9  franchise to a new street furniture franchise, with

         10  no interruption in service or revenue to the City,

         11  it is necessary to extend the existing franchise

         12  until the contract for the new franchise can be

         13  awarded and fully executed.  Intro. 494 will

         14  accomplish this by allowing an extension of the

         15  existing franchise for an additional year, until

         16  December 31, 2005.

         17                 Thank you for the opportunity to be

         18  here today, and I will be happy to answer any

         19  questions.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  All right, when

         21  you are done.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I was just going

         23  to say, any questions from Committee members?  Let

         24  me just mention one quick thing before I call on

         25  Council Member Katz, that the reason we are laying
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          2  the vote over is a simple procedural matter that in

          3  effect the bill we recently passed extending the

          4  authorizing resolution for the private bus

          5  companies, included a little section about the bus

          6  shelters, and that is not actually being signed into

          7  law till tomorrow.  And we can't vote on this

          8  because that effects this.  So once that is voted

          9  on, signed into law we can then vote this on

         10  Thursday.  So, that is why the vote is actually

         11  being laid over until Thursday.

         12                 Council Member Katz.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Good morning.

         14  Can you give us the status on street furniture, RFP?

         15                 MS. HORSCH:  Sure.  The proposals

         16  were due on September 14th, we received five

         17  proposals.  The Evaluation Committee is currently

         18  reviewing them, and we hope to award a contract by

         19  the end, by after the new year, at this point we

         20  will start contract negotiations with the winning

         21  proposer.  And once that contract is agreed to, we

         22  will go through the FCRC process and move on to

         23  registration.  So, ideally, we would like that to

         24  happen by this time next year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So you will not
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          2  have a final contract in the works by November of

          3  2005.

          4                 MS. HORSCH:  Yes, we hope to finish

          5  the process by the end of 2005, a fully executed

          6  contract.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So, you

          8  requested the one- year extension.  I mean we could,

          9  theoretically so a six- month extension.

         10                 MS. HORSCH:  Correct, but one- year

         11  will just allow us.  We know that six months is not

         12  going to be enough.  And there is a clause, a

         13  termination clause in the existing language, the

         14  contract, that if the Street Furniture contract is

         15  signed and approved before the end of next year,

         16  that there is a termination clause.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  How many people

         18  answered the RFP, how many companies?

         19                 MS. HORSCH:  Five.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Five, oh, that

         21  answered, that wasn't - -

         22                 MS. HORSCH:  We received five

         23  proposals.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  You have

         25  received five, and you haven't done any other
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          2  decision- making process with the five?

          3                 MS. HORSCH:  The Evaluation Committee

          4  is the process of reviewing them.  And they hope to

          5  choose somebody after the new year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I mean, my

          7  understanding is that there is some lawsuit that

          8  there is an agreement not to choose someone until

          9  March of 2005, do you know anything about that?

         10                 MS. HORSCH:  March 2005?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  You don't know

         12  anything about that?

         13                 MS. HORSCH:  I don't.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.

         15                 MS. HORSCH:  I mean I can certainly

         16  find out for you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  My

         18  understanding is that --

         19                 MS. HORSCH:  But I know that the Law

         20  Department is handling - -

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Yes, my

         22  understanding is that there is some sort of an

         23  agreement between the parties to choose someone in

         24  March.  And my real question for that was whether or

         25  not that would extend the time frame that you are
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          2  calculating?  I mean that was the only reason I was

          3  asking.

          4                 MS. HORSCH:  Yes, I can get back to

          5  you on that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So, if you

          7  could get back to us, that would be great.  I

          8  appreciate it.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any other

         10  questions?  Thank you.  If there is no one else to

         11  sign up to speak on this item, I will close the

         12  public hearing.

         13                 I will skip on the agenda to the last

         14  item, Land Use No. 333, C 050043 ZMX, an application

         15  by the Department of City Planning for an amendment

         16  of the Zoning Map changing from an R3- 1 to R3- A

         17  district bounded by the boundary line of the City of

         18  New York, a line 100 feet westerly of Broadway, West

         19  259th Street, and other streets, in the Bronx, in

         20  Community Board 8.

         21                 MS. KAPUR:  Good morning.  My name is

         22  Purnima Kapur. I am the Director of the Bronx Office

         23  of City Planning.  With me is my colleague, Matt

         24  Mason, and we are here to present the North

         25  Riverdale Rezoning.  Just to remind everyone here,
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          2  this is the third application that you are looking

          3  at for rezoning in the Riverdale Section, or

          4  Community District 8 in the Bronx.  It is a series

          5  of rezonings that we undertook as part of the 197- A

          6  process where the Community Board and the Department

          7  worked together and agreed on certain rezonings in

          8  the community district.

          9                 This rezoning addresses issues off

         10  over development and mismatch between the existing

         11  zoning and the building context in North Riverdale.

         12  We will keep this really brief, and I will ask Matt

         13  Mason to present the details of the rezoning here.

         14                 MR. MASON:  All right, as Purnima

         15  mentioned, the reason behind this rezoning is the

         16  community feels the existing zoning does not match

         17  the existing built context of the neighborhood.

         18                 The current zoning is R3- 1, north of

         19  259th Street, and R3- 2 south of 259th Street, in

         20  two segments divided by Mosholu Avenue, a commercial

         21  corridor with a higher density, an R4 density.

         22                 The R3- 1 Zoning District allows for

         23  detached and semi- detached homes, detached homes

         24  are indicated by the pale yellow color, and semi-

         25  detached homes are indicated by the lighter orange
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          2  color.

          3                 R3- 2 Zoning Districts allow for all

          4  building types, including detached, semi- detached,

          5  row houses, and apartment buildings.  However, the

          6  existing context of the neighborhood is primarily

          7  detached homes, north of 259th Street, indicated

          8  here, and a mix of detached and semi- detached

          9  homes, south of 259th Street.

         10                 New development in the neighborhood

         11  has not been contextual, as the existing zoning does

         12  not match the building type.  For this reason we

         13  propose to zone the neighborhood to an R3- A Zoning

         14  District, north of Mosholu Avenue Corridor, and an

         15  R3- 1 district, south of the Mosholu Avenue

         16  Corridor.  Yard requirements, density requirements

         17  would not change in this rezoning.  All that would

         18  change is the allowed building type.  In the R3- A

         19  District the only type of building allowed is

         20  detached homes to better match the context here.

         21  And 83 percent of the residentially developed lots

         22  here are detached homes.

         23                 In the new R3- 1 District, which we

         24  propose, only detached and semi- detached homes are

         25  allowed, and 92 percent of residentially developed
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          2  lots in this area match this zoning designation.  In

          3  the whole rezoning area, 81 percent of the

          4  residentially developed lots match our proposed

          5  zoning.

          6                 That is it.

          7                 MS. KAPUR:  The only thing I would

          8  add to this, is the Community Board, the Borough

          9  President, everyone has been supportive of this

         10  rezoning, and you know, we haven't heard any

         11  different.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  And the project

         13  lies within Council Member Koppell's District, - -

         14                 MS. KAPUR:  That is correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: - -  and he is

         16  100 percent, fully in support, and he so

         17  communicated that to us on a number of occasions.

         18                 Any questions from Committee members,

         19  Council members?  Thank you.

         20                 We have one speaker signed up on

         21  this, the Chair of Community Board 8.

         22                 MR. CASSINO:  Thank you.  I am Tony

         23  Cassino.  I am Chair of Community Board 8, and I

         24  mainly wanted to come here to thank this Committee

         25  for your support in the series of zoning changes.
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          2  This really represents six years, seven years of

          3  hard work by the Community Board, and there is an

          4  opportunity here to preserve an area in North

          5  Riverdale that really has a wonderful character of

          6  small, one- and two- family homes.  And we feel like

          7  we are sort of getting to this area before it has

          8  been overrun by over development.

          9                 So we appreciate your efforts, on

         10  behalf, and that the Community Board is strongly in

         11  support, all of our elected officials are strongly

         12  in support, and City Planning has really been

         13  amazing at helping us move this through.  So thank

         14  you, and thank you for your support for our prior

         15  changes, which may have been a little more

         16  controversial, so, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Nothing is ever

         18  easy, when it comes to this Committee.

         19                 If there is nobody else signed up to

         20  speak, we will close the public hearing on this

         21  item, and we will move to the last item, Land Use

         22  Nos. 339 through 341, C 040215 ZMK, C 040216 ZSK, C

         23  040217 ZSK, commonly referred to as 85 Jay Street.

         24  An application submitted by the Watch Tower Bible

         25  and Tract Society of New York.
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          2                 Can we have the applicants up to

          3  testify?  And while they are setting up, if I can

          4  remind everybody, if you want to speak on this item,

          5  please, fill out a speaker slip by the Sergeant- At-

          6  Arms.  Please indicate whether you are in favor or

          7  opposition, because we will call panels one in

          8  favor, one in opposition.  So, it is very important

          9  that we know where you stand.

         10                 MR. DEVINE:  Hello, my name is

         11  Richard Devine.  I am an Ordained Minister, and a

         12  member of a religious order.  I have lived in the

         13  Brooklyn Heights and DUMBO community for about the

         14  last 25 years.

         15                 The facilities in Brooklyn Heights

         16  and DUMBO, owned by the Watch Tower Bible and Tract

         17  Society, house the World Headquarters of Jehovah

         18  Witnesses, which many of you are familiar with.  It

         19  serves a spiritual interest of millions of

         20  Americans, and tens of thousands of New Yorkers as

         21  well, as well as millions more worldwide.

         22                 The World Headquarters of Jehovah

         23  Witnesses was moved to Brooklyn Heights and DUMBO in

         24  1909, and has been a continuous part of the history

         25  and area ever since.  The Watch Tower Bible and
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          2  Tract Society is one of the foremost producers of

          3  bibles in the world.  We produce millions of copies

          4  each year, in 45 languages, all of which are

          5  distributed worldwide.  Also, the Watch Tower

          6  Society sponsors literacy programs all over the

          7  world, with the goal of making it possible for

          8  anyone who would like to read God's word in their

          9  own language to do so.

         10                 The Watch Tower Magazine also is the

         11  principal journal of Jehovah Witnesses.  It is the

         12  most widely translated magazine in the world.  It is

         13  currently available in 145 languages at a

         14  circulation of 25 million copies an issue.

         15                 The World Headquarters in Brooklyn

         16  also supervises the work of 100,000 congregations of

         17  Jehovah Witnesses worldwide, as well as financing

         18  and supervising the construction of thousands of

         19  places of worship each year.

         20                 The Watch Tower Society, as part of

         21  their charter, also supervises and finances disaster

         22  relief efforts, such as the ones that are currently

         23  involved in Haiti, throughout the Caribbean,

         24  Florida, and Alabama, after the recent hurricanes.

         25                 Now those staffing the Headquarters
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          2  of Jehovah Witnesses are members of a religious

          3  order of taking special vows, and may also include

          4  students and temporary volunteers who from time to

          5  time come to help with special projects.

          6                 Further assistance with this work, no

          7  one receives a salary or other remuneration, a

          8  modest living space, meals, and medical care are

          9  provided to allow them to continue with their

         10  ministerial work.  For 125 years, those making up

         11  the headquarter staff at Watch Tower have lived a

         12  simple, communal life style taking their meals and

         13  worshipping together.

         14                 Watch Tower Bible and Tract Society

         15  currently has over 30 buildings in Brooklyn Heights

         16  and DUMBO, including residents, office, warehouse

         17  and support space.  So as the work of Jehovah

         18  Witnesses has grown worldwide the headquarters has

         19  grown. And this has involved the need to purchase

         20  over the years the number of Brownstones and various

         21  hotels to serve as residences of being scattered

         22  throughout a number of buildings, you know, large

         23  geographic areas, results in less than an ideal

         24  situation for us, and also a lot of unnecessary

         25  traffic, moving materials and people in the
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          2  community.  Also, the future construction of the

          3  Brooklyn Bridge Park requires that we relocate

          4  nearly 700 cars owned by our staff from the lot on

          5  the waterfront that we have been leasing from the

          6  Port Authority for the last 20 years.

          7                 Watch Tower's property at 85 Jay lies

          8  in close proximity to all the major elements of our

          9  facility, and it represents a unique opportunity for

         10  our organization.  It has the space for a suitable

         11  dining facility for those living on the property to

         12  take their communal meals together.  It also has a

         13  feature, the possibility of a feature that is

         14  currently lacking in our Brooklyn facility, and that

         15  is, a large assembly hall where our staff can meet

         16  together for religious services, funerals and other

         17  events.

         18                 Also the opportunity to consolidate

         19  the use of a number of smaller buildings into a more

         20  central location would create to the opportunity for

         21  us to sell a number of buildings and put these back

         22  on the tax rolls.  It would also accommodate our

         23  parking needs in a location about as close to

         24  Brooklyn's largest transportation routes as it is

         25  possible to get.  We are only a block from the
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          2  Brooklyn Bridge, and both directions of the BQE, the

          3  entrance ramps, and this would greatly reduce

          4  traffic in the Brooklyn Heights and DUMBO area by

          5  allowing people to live where their cars are parked

          6  right near where they need to go.

          7                 So that kind of summarizes the

          8  history of our organization and the need for this

          9  project.

         10                 MS. MEYERS:  Thank you, Council

         11  members.  My name is Melanie Meyers.  I am an

         12  attorney with Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver,

         13  Jacobson here representing the Watch Tower Bible and

         14  Tract Society.  The application before you involves

         15  three actions relating to the development of a

         16  community facility in DUMBO to serve the needs of

         17  the Headquarter staff for the Watch Tower Bible and

         18  Tract Society.  There is a rezoning and there are

         19  two special permits, one is a large scale, special

         20  permit the second is a permit for a public parking

         21  garage.

         22                 The site, itself, you can see in the

         23  picture over there.  I may have to maneuver around a

         24  little bit.  It is about 135,000 square foot site

         25  bounded by Jay Street, York Street, Bridge and Front
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          2  Street.  Currently, the site, itself, is unimproved.

          3    It has been owned by the Watch Tower for over 10

          4  years, currently used for parking about 240 vehicles

          5  and some storage facilities surrounded by a fence,

          6  but otherwise unimproved.  It is also currently

          7  zoned M1- 2, it is a manufacturing district.

          8                 Adjacent to the site to the west are

          9  a number of districts which have densities ranging

         10  from 9 and 10 FAR.  To the east of the site is

         11  Vinegar Hill, which is an R- 6 District.

         12                 The buildings in the area, which

         13  again you can see in this picture range in

         14  densities.  Most of the buildings though that sort

         15  of reflect the loft character of DUMBO range in

         16  densities from about 5 to 12 FAR.  And Richard, if

         17  you could help me, it is a very simply diagram

         18  showing the buildings that are in the area, which

         19  are, again, in the range of a 5 to 10 FAR density.

         20  And Richard, if you could, if you could just point

         21  where our site is, so that you can see the site that

         22  we are talking about.

         23                 The buildings also range in height,

         24  and where the range is really ranging from quite low

         25  to over 300 feet in height. And again, if we could
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          2  put up the next graphic, the heights, generally, if

          3  you look at the Bridge Street Corridor, which is the

          4  corridor that is nearest the Vinegar Hill Community,

          5  the heights generally range from about 40 feet to

          6  about 162 feet in height. The buildings along the

          7  Jay Street corridor, which is on the west side of

          8  our site, generally range in the order of from about

          9  50 feet to over 300 feet.

         10                 The proposed project would rezone the

         11  project site to an R- 8 density, which is a

         12  transition density midway between the densities in

         13  the districts to the west of the site, down to the

         14  R- 6 district to the east.  It is also a district

         15  which would provide for density to the development,

         16  of 6 FAR, which is consistent with a number of the

         17  loft buildings in the area.

         18                 In doing the rezoning that would

         19  enable the Watch Tower to develop a project which

         20  really contains six components, there would be four

         21  residential buildings, which as originally proposed

         22  range from 14 to 20 stories, about 160 to 220 feet

         23  in height, and two much lower components, which

         24  would have been the dining hall to serve of the

         25  communal meals of the facility, and the assembly
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          2  hall which would be on the Bridge Street frontage.

          3                 The project would also provide for

          4  1,100 spaces of parking to allow for relocations

          5  base for the Watch Tower to allow for space when the

          6  Bridge Park is open, and provide for the spaces that

          7  would be lost through that amenity.

          8                 The project, these large scale,

          9  special permit would create a development envelope

         10  for the project, which would really serve to respond

         11  to a number of the goals, and the planning needs

         12  that we heard in conversations with the community,

         13  with City Planning, and with the local Council

         14  members.  The envelope would create an envelope and

         15  development that had a series of heights that

         16  transition from the higher density districts and the

         17  density development in the DUMBO area, down to the

         18  lower density portions of Vinegar Hill.

         19                 And the project as conceived, and

         20  Richard will go through it, Richard Metsky will go

         21  through that very briefly, really picks up on the

         22  loft character that we can see in the area.

         23                 In the course of the Land Use

         24  process, there have been a number of changes that

         25  have been made to the project.  The Community Board
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          2  recommended approval of the project with two

          3  recommendations:

          4                 One recommendation was to lower the

          5  height of the Bridge Street frontage to the height

          6  of no more than 120 feet, and to relocate the space

          7  that would be lost by that lowering of height over

          8  to the Jay Street Side.  And that, we have been able

          9  to accommodate that change and that request, so that

         10  the height, and when we went to City Planning, we

         11  showed them a development which included a height of

         12  120 feet along Bridge Street.

         13                 At the City Planning Commission some

         14  additional changes were made, which included the

         15  loss of about 9 percent of the size of the building.

         16    There was a reduction and floor area of about

         17  76,800 square feet, which reduced the overall size

         18  of the project, as I said by about 9 percent, and

         19  would result in a reduction of approximately 12

         20  percent of the living units that were in the area.

         21                 There is also some minor changes to

         22  the envelope configuration, it was part of the City

         23  Planning.  At this point, as the result of

         24  additional discussions, and with the local Council

         25  members and with further consideration, the Watch
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          2  Tower has proposed some additional modifications to

          3  the envelope of the project that would reduce the

          4  size and the height of the buildings that are on the

          5  Jay Street and the Front Street frontages.  So that

          6  the street walls in those two buildings would have a

          7  height of six stories, about 80 feet, and were set

          8  back for another additional three stories.  So they

          9  would have a height of no more than approximately

         10  110 feet.  So those changes are being proposed

         11  today, and you will see those.

         12                 In addition, in terms of, through

         13  further discussions with Council Member James and

         14  Yassky, who I am glad to see here today, the Watch

         15  Tower has agreed to some additional amenities in the

         16  area.  This would include the renovation of Bridge

         17  Park Two, which we talked about before, which is the

         18  park that is to the north of the Brooklyn Queens

         19  Expressway, and would resurface that and provide for

         20  new amenities in that.

         21                 We also have agreed to undertake the

         22  restoration of the basketball courts, working with

         23  the Parks Department in Bridge Park One.  The Watch

         24  Tower has also agreed to implement a number of

         25  security measures in the area, including lighting
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          2  along York Street, in Bridge Park Two, security

          3  cameras that would look and be directed towards the

          4  areas adjacent to the property, including the York

          5  Street Subway Entrance, a manned security lobby at

          6  the corner of Bridge and York Street, and vehicular

          7  patrols in the area.

          8                 The Watch Tower has also agreed to,

          9  on the Jay Street frontage to include within the

         10  building a public reading room that would have

         11  seating and refreshments so that people who wanted

         12  to come in, and to look at the literature and of the

         13  organization, could do that in that location.

         14                 And finally, the Watch Tower has also

         15  agreed to undertake and to implement, and to work

         16  with local contractors in the construction of 85 Jay

         17  Street, and to work with local suppliers for the

         18  future needs of the Watch Tower.

         19                 So, we appreciate the consideration

         20  that this project has had, and we would appreciate

         21  your consideration of this project.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Before we go any

         23  further, I would just like to, another, a few

         24  Council members have to leave because of other

         25  Committee meetings, I would like to ask Counsel to
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          2  call the roll on the one item that we are voting on

          3  today.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Avella.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Aye.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Gioia.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Yes.

          8                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Katz.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  McMahon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Aye.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Vann.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Aye.

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  The vote

         15  stands 6 in the affirmative, none in the negative,

         16  and no abstentions.  The are referred to the full

         17  Land Use Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Just to go over

         19  a couple of things, and I am sure that some of the

         20  Council members are going to have questions.  The

         21  additional amenities that you talked about, just

         22  briefly now, they are outlined in the November 29th

         23  letter that you sent to Council Member James and

         24  Yassky, correct?

         25                 MS. MEYERS:  Yes, they are.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I think it would

          3  be helpful for everybody, if you brought up a couple

          4  of design drawings just to show what the - -

          5                 MS. MEYERS:  Richard Metsky from

          6  Beyer, Blinder, Belle is here, and he will go

          7  through the transition, the transformation, and the

          8  current plan.

          9                 MR. METSKY:  I am Richard Metsky, a

         10  partner of Beyer, Blinder, Belle Architects, and I

         11  am joined with Doug McKean, also a partner at Beyer,

         12  Blinder, Belle.  The first drawing I am going to put

         13  up, basically, is sort of an overview, an aerial

         14  photograph of our site with Lower Manhattan in the

         15  background, and the surrounding neighborhoods of

         16  DUMBO, Vinegar Hill, and Farragut Housing.  In the

         17  foreground you can see the Manhattan Bridge also,

         18  and the BQE adjacent to our site.

         19                 Our architectural design strategy was

         20  to make sure that we reconnect this block to its

         21  surrounding neighborhood.  We looked at what makes

         22  up the physical mass and the architectural

         23  vocabulary of the local context.  We looked at the

         24  warehouses and the factory buildings and the

         25  bridges.  Our goal was to create a contextual

                                                            29

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  building that fits appropriately into this

          3  neighborhood. And as Melanie mentioned our plan is

          4  organized around six building components, the four

          5  residential buildings, and the two lower elements

          6  that you can see on the rendering, the dining hall

          7  and the assembly hall.

          8                 We created, and this is important,

          9  street wall buildings, right.  They are not

         10  internalized, all the buildings are on the street.

         11  We created a courtyard in the center, green spaces

         12  along the sidewalk in order to break up the building

         13  massing.  Our buildings step down, they transition

         14  from Manhattan Bridge and BQE at Jay Street to the

         15  lower building fabric that you find adjacent to the

         16  Bridge Street Corridor.  And our architectural

         17  vocabulary is based on very simple, but strongly

         18  articulated masonry buildings with large, punched

         19  window openings that are very similar to the

         20  buildings that you find throughout these

         21  neighborhoods.

         22                 If we go down to the ground level,

         23  let me just give you an idea of sort of what the

         24  streetscape would start to look like.  The first

         25  drawing is looking down the Jay Street Corridor
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          2  towards the waterfront with the subway building

          3  right to your right.  What we want to emphasize is

          4  that in this main sort of entry to our building, it

          5  is highly transparent, lots of glass, very open,

          6  very inviting, warm and safe.  And especially at

          7  night the lobby becomes a real lantern to the

          8  important corner of York and Jay Street.

          9                 If we go down just slightly and we

         10  look down York Street, and that is the next view

         11  Doug is putting up.  What I want to emphasize is how

         12  the masonry grid, which we find throughout the

         13  neighborhood comes down to the ground like any other

         14  building in DUMBO.  Each building, each residential

         15  building also has a secondary entry, right.  So,

         16  that we create a safe and comfortable streetscape

         17  that blends into the immediate neighborhood fabric,

         18  and feels like any street in the neighborhood.

         19                 And the final view is of the corner

         20  of Jay and Front Street.  Again, it is one of our

         21  lower elements, it is the dining hall.  Highly

         22  transparent, very open, very accessible, the dining

         23  hall overlooks Jay Street in the public reading

         24  room, which Melanie had mentioned, is on the street

         25  level, and creates a very active, vibrant,
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          2  streetscape for this important Jay Street Corridor.

          3                 Finally, we have the three acts on,

          4  which describe the evolution of this plan.  We call

          5  them sort of version one through three.  Version

          6  one, which Melanie had mentioned, was original ULURP

          7  submission, and again shows the transition of

          8  buildings, residential buildings, from 20 stories to

          9  14.  Just to orientate everybody, this is Jay

         10  Street, this is Front Street, York Street is up top.

         11    Here is our dining hall, which you just saw in the

         12  perspective view.  So, our buildings step down from

         13  the corner of Jay and York to Bridge and Front, 20,

         14  18, 16, and 14, and that was the original scheme.

         15                 Version two, in response to the

         16  Community Board recommendation, two recommendations,

         17  was that the corner building on Bridge and Front be

         18  reduced to under 120 feet, and so our buildings now

         19  go from 20, 18, 16 to 10 stories.  That building

         20  dropped approximately 40 feet on the corner and was

         21  at a 120 feet.

         22                 The final version and acts on, is in

         23  response to what City Planning and City Council,

         24  minus the 76,000 square feet of floor area that we

         25  lost.  Here the buildings have dropped from 20 to 18
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          2  to 9 and 9, so that all the buildings, the two

          3  buildings that are on Front Street are now under 120

          4  feet.

          5                 The Front Street Building that one

          6  especially dropped 70 feet or seven floors, and the

          7  Bridge Street Building dropped another additional

          8  floor down to, another additional floor of about 10

          9  feet.  We then did a series of elevations based on

         10  this last version to show, I think the dramatic

         11  change in terms of the massing on Bridge Street, on

         12  Front Street.  This is a view of Front, Jay Street,

         13  Bridge Street, these buildings are now under 120

         14  feet, with the street wall at 80 feet at that

         15  corner.  And it shows, I think, from the original

         16  scene quite a dramatic reduction in height.

         17                 What is very apparent when you go

         18  around the corner to Bridge Street is that our

         19  buildings now are very much in scale to its adjacent

         20  neighbors.  You can see that our street wall is at

         21  80, the adjacent building across the street on Front

         22  is 79, the Eskimo Pie Building is at 67, in fact, 60

         23  percent of this facade is under 65 feet lower than

         24  the two adjacent buildings next door to it.

         25                 The last one is of Jay Street, where
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          2  the bulk, a lot of the bulk was shifted over towards

          3  this end of the site, with no adverse of impact on

          4  Jay Street, that is the building coming around the

          5  corner within the courtyard, and again, under 120

          6  feet.

          7                 So those were the changes that took

          8  place this last round.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Now the reason

         10  we are laying over the vote till Thursday is that we

         11  need the technical drawings. You know that you have

         12  to get us the technical drawings on the

         13  modification.

         14                 MR. METSKY:  Yes I do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Because that is

         16  in effect what we are voting on.

         17                 MR. METSKY:  Yes, Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Questions from

         19  Council members? Council Member Yassky.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you

         21  very much.  And I just, first, want to thank you,

         22  Chair Avella, for giving some additional time.  Of

         23  course, you are under a time clock, but you have

         24  within the constraints of that, appreciate your

         25  doing as much as you can so that the community that
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          2  is affected by this project can look at the final

          3  version of it.  And have some more, you know, an

          4  opportunity for input before the final vote.

          5  Because this is, I think, quite an important

          6  project.

          7                 I do have a couple of questions.  I

          8  just want to start by saying the context of course

          9  for this is that, and first of all, I also want to

         10  note that the project, of course, in Council Member

         11  James' District, and I want to thank her publicly,

         12  as I have privately, for her willingness to let me

         13  have an input here because most, I think, of the

         14  residents who are affected by this project live in

         15  the 33rd Council District, and so, I thank you again

         16  Council Member James.

         17                 The project site now, the block on

         18  which this building is proposed to be built,

         19  Committee members should know, is, of course, an

         20  empty lot, which surrounded by a fence with barbed

         21  wire on top.  It is not doing much good to anybody

         22  at the moment.  And so my goal throughout this has

         23  to been to see that there is development on that

         24  site, but development that is appropriate to the

         25  neighborhood and that will result, is the best
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          2  possible development, I mean, there are some things

          3  that would be worse than an empty lot.  But I think

          4  the best outcome is if something can be built.

          5                 The original proposal by the Watch

          6  Tower raised to my mind three major concerns.  One

          7  was the height of the project, which particularly on

          8  Bridge Street and Front Street, I felt the proposal

          9  was just out of scale with the surrounding

         10  neighborhood.

         11                 The second concern to me related to

         12  height, I guess, is the number of additional

         13  residents that this project will bring to DUMBO, and

         14  the resulting taxing or resulting strain on the

         15  infrastructure of this neighborhood.  It is now,

         16  this will close to double, or could maybe, I guess,

         17  by DUMBO growing rapidly increase by maybe 50

         18  percent the population of the neighborhood.  And I

         19  just do not believe that the neighborhood now has

         20  the open space and the transportation infrastructure

         21  to support that.  And so that was a concern, that is

         22  a concern.

         23                 And finally, I wanted to be sure that

         24  this project with development here would contribute

         25  to a streetscape on Jay Street in particular that
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          2  would help the neighborhood grow and develop that

          3  the block that this, one of the faces of this

          4  project along Jay Street is on the much traveled

          5  route to the subway stop. And that should be a

          6  central commercial corridor.  And so it has been

          7  really a major concern of mine from the outset of

          8  this project that it did not propose any retail

          9  activity on Jay Street.

         10                 So those are the concerns that I have

         11  had.  I do think that the Watch Tower has addressed

         12  these concerns in substantial part, not entirely,

         13  but in substantial part, and I want to ask just a

         14  couple of clarifying questions about this.

         15                 The height reductions that you are

         16  proposing today, I want to make sure I understand.

         17  Along Bridge Street the maximum height here would be

         18  82 feet?  I have the letter and I understand that

         19  this was emailed to me yesterday, but I did not see

         20  this letter until this morning coming to the hearing

         21  here.  So, I want to make sure that I understand

         22  this.  The maximum height along Bridge Street would

         23  be 82 feet; is that correct?

         24                 MS. MEYERS:  If I can clarify, there

         25  is a street wall height and then the building would
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          2  set back.  The street wall height would be 82 feet.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  The street

          4  wall height.

          5                 MS. MEYERS:  Then there would be a

          6  setback, and an additional three stories would be

          7  allowed.  On the overall maximum height of that

          8  setback portion is about 110 feet and four inches, I

          9  believe, is the exact, above the curb level.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay.

         11                 MS. MEYERS:  So from a street wall

         12  perspective what you would see as you are walking

         13  along the street is the 82- foot height.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And the

         15  Borough President recommendation, and as I testified

         16  before the City Planning Commission, and I think the

         17  Borough President put forward, really a terrific

         18  proposal here, and to my mind, the ideal proposal.

         19  The Borough President's proposal was for 80 feet

         20  here.

         21                 MS. MEYERS:  The Borough President's

         22  proposal, as we understood it, was an 80- foot

         23  limitation, they said, along Bridge Street.  I don't

         24  know where his boundary, what boundary it was.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  This 82 is
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          2  opposed to 80 in terms of the street wall.

          3                 MS. MEYERS:  Yes, that is correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay.  And

          5  along Front Street, the street wall is at 110 feet.

          6  Am I understanding that?

          7                 MS. MEYERS:  Along the Front Street

          8  portion, and it may make sense to just pull up that

          9  drawing.  Again, the street wall itself would be at

         10  82 feet, setback, going up to a height of 110 foot,

         11  four inches.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Oh, okay, so,

         13  again, the street wall is there, thank you.

         14                 MS. MEYERS:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  That is

         16  helpful to me.

         17                 MS. MEYERS:  Richard is pointing to

         18  the street wall lot right there.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Again, the

         20  street wall here is 82 feet, and that is again, the

         21  Borough President's proposal was for an 80- foot

         22  street wall.

         23                 MS. MEYERS:  The Borough President's

         24  proposal was for 80 feet in some areas, and 120 feet

         25  away from Bridge Street. So we believe this is fully
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          2  in, consistent on these two frontages with what the

          3  Borough President's proposal.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  A matter of a

          5  couple of feet difference, but okay, on Bridge and

          6  Front.  Not along Jay Street, I mean, I understand

          7  that.

          8                 MS. MEYERS:  On Bridge and Front, not

          9  along Jay Street.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And I want to

         11  be clear, your proposal does depart substantially

         12  from the Borough President's in terms of Jay Street.

         13                 MS. MEYERS:  Yes, the Borough

         14  President asked for a substantial reduction below

         15  the height of most of the existing buildings in

         16  those areas.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay.  On the

         18  infrastructure--

         19                 MR. METSKY:  Mr. Yassky, I think the

         20  actual proposal was for a 70- foot, I don't have it

         21  in front of me.  But I just want to be clear on

         22  that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well it looks

         24  like folks in the audience who are saying, are

         25  nodding, so it was 70 feet.  Okay, so you are some
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          2  12 feet above that in terms of the street wall.

          3  Okay.

          4                 On infrastructure, my concern for

          5  infrastructure, which I think is really quite

          6  important here.  Your letter speaks of renovation of

          7  Bridge Park Two, and basketball courts in Bridge

          8  Park One.  I just want to make sure, clarify, the

          9  Parks Department came up with a scope of work for

         10  Bridge Park Two.  And you are proposing to do that

         11  scope of work that the Parks Department laid out?

         12                 And if it is appropriate, Chair

         13  Avella, I would like to just forward to the

         14  Committee, and I don't know if it can still be

         15  entered into the record, the scope of work that the

         16  Parks Department provided for Bridge Park Two.  I

         17  just want to clarify that is what you are proposing

         18  to do.

         19                 MS. MEYERS:  That is correct, and the

         20  conversations with the Parks Department have begun.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay.

         22                 MR. METSKY:  There is some additional

         23  amenities that are being considered, such as

         24  lighting in the park, which we put in our letter to

         25  you yesterday.  And then there is some talk of

                                                            41

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  putting a pedestrian pathway through the park so

          3  that the residents of Farragut Houses would have an

          4  easier walk to the subway.  So that is also

          5  something the Parks Department is putting forward,

          6  and we are not, we are fine with that, but we need

          7  to work out the details.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Okay, thank

          9  you.  And then in terms of the subway, you know, I

         10  want to tell the Committee members, one of the

         11  things I think that has made this possible is the

         12  Parks Department is open to working with the Watch

         13  Tower so that they will do the work on the park.

         14  And I have to tell the Committee that the MTA has

         15  been absolutely uninterested in accepting help here

         16  on their subway stations, which is unfortunate.

         17  Because I do think that that subway station could

         18  benefit from an upgrade, and indeed, you know, as

         19  the neighborhood grows the transportation

         20  infrastructure will, the deficits will become all

         21  the more apparent.  And I do, the Watch Tower has

         22  indicated an interest in trying to help, but the MTA

         23  has just been uninterested in accepting that help.

         24  So, I think, I just want the Committee members to

         25  know that.
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          2                 But what you are proposing on the

          3  subway stop is to enhance the security on the

          4  exterior by, if I see in this letter, security

          5  cameras that you would be monitoring on a 24- hour

          6  basis that would take in the outside of the subway

          7  stop, obviously, not inside, but the exterior.

          8                 MR. METSKY:  That is correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And then it

         10  says maintain an active lit and manned entrance to

         11  the 85 Jay Street project across York Street from

         12  the subway entrance 24 hours a day.  That I

         13  understand is in that, I guess that is the one that

         14  is up there now, the entrance way on that corner.

         15  This, you are saying that will be manned, and that

         16  provides security for the subway station across the

         17  street.  Will the staff that is manning that be

         18  inside the building or outside?  And the reason that

         19  I ask is, I do think that if the folks are outside

         20  the building that really does a lot more for the

         21  security of the subway stop, then if they are inside

         22  the building.

         23                 MR. METSKY:  What we have proposed is

         24  that we would have 24- hour security inside the

         25  building to provide refuge in the case of a problem
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          2  that came up, and also to have eyes on the street in

          3  addition to the security cameras.  And also, what we

          4  have proposed is to do rounds in vehicles around the

          5  site, throughout the night.

          6                 The concern that we have is that our

          7  people would be a target on the street.  We don't

          8  arm ourselves, people are sheep, they are not

          9  trained to fight or to be able to take on these

         10  kinds of things.  And we really are not comfortable

         11  with having somebody actually on the street all

         12  through the night.  But we do propose to have people

         13  there, and to have eyes on the site, also to have

         14  patrols.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Although, I

         16  guess that is not terribly encouraging for the

         17  residents, if you are concerned about having people

         18  right outside the building.  I guess I would ask you

         19  in the next couple of day, before the Committee does

         20  finally vote, if you could think about that.

         21  Because I think that if the idea here is to enhance

         22  the security at the subway station, I think you

         23  would do that much more effectively by having people

         24  outside on the street, on the sidewalk, right

         25  outside the building.
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          2                 MS. MEYERS:  Council member, the one

          3  thing that I would point out, and we certainly will

          4  take that back, there will new lighting in the area.

          5    There will be a lot more light, there will be a

          6  lot more activity in the area, which is going to

          7  help the security, understanding your concern.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And lastly,

          9  in terms of security, I know that we have discussed,

         10  you and I have, Richard, the fact that the

         11  neighborhood is about to be incorporated, or

         12  whatever the language is, that the neighborhood is

         13  about to form a BID, a Business Improvement

         14  District.  And you know, it certainly has been my

         15  belief that the Watch Tower is absolutely entitled

         16  to be treated, you know, just like any other

         17  applicant here, so not to be, I mean, you are tax

         18  exempt, or religious organization, but that doesn't

         19  mean that you are not entitled to all the same

         20  consideration in the Land Use process that everybody

         21  else is.  But similarly, a commercial development

         22  here would be included in the BID, and pay into the

         23  BID.

         24                 And I understand that you have raised

         25  with me the fact that you know, your charter places
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          2  very real restrictions on what sort of activities

          3  your dollars can fund.  And so, you have expressed

          4  to me, I don't want to put words in your mouth, that

          5  the Watch Tower cannot join the BID, period.

          6                 But what I would like to ask is

          7  whether you can commit to participating in the BID,

          8  not as a member, but to fund activities of the BID

          9  that are consistent with the charter, such as

         10  security, and I think this is also where this speaks

         11  to the security concern.

         12                 MR. DEVINE:  Right.  When the BID was

         13  being formed, we met several times with the Steering

         14  Committee of the BID.  And we sent them a letter,

         15  which I would be happy to provide a copy to you on.

         16  And while we refrained from joining the BID itself,

         17  we did agree to assist with projects on a case- by-

         18  case basis.  And we said they could approach us on a

         19  case- by- case basis.

         20                 Security is something that would

         21  affect all of us. We helped support the Brooklyn

         22  Heights Neighborhood Watch for a number of years.

         23  So I don't see a problem there working with them on

         24  that.  They are still getting organized, and we have

         25  not had any discussions at all on what they would
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          2  like to see.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Right, I

          4  understand, there is nobody really there to work out

          5  details with at this point.

          6                 MR. DEVINE:  And we are also

          7  independently taking on many of the goals of the

          8  BID, which is including and improving open space in

          9  the area, and improving security in the area, and

         10  cleaning and keeping public spaces and grounds in

         11  good shape.

         12                 So, I think in many respects our

         13  goals are compatible.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  And lastly,

         15  in terms of the impact on the Jay Street, street

         16  environment, I understand that your testimony is

         17  that the Watch Tower cannot engage in commercial

         18  activity, and therefore, cannot be a landlord or

         19  have a retail establishment.  But if I get it, the

         20  idea is that you are going to go as far in that

         21  direction as you feel you can with a reading room.

         22  And I want to be clear, that is open to the public,

         23  is that right?

         24                 MR. DEVINE:  Yes, that is true.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  That is open
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          2  to the public, and you have said that it will be a

          3  reading room with refreshments and kind of an

          4  environment, you know, seating, and environment that

          5  people can come in off, general public from the

          6  neighborhood and use it, if they desire.  I guess

          7  what I am looking for is, just a qualitative

          8  commitment that the goal there will be to make that

          9  as open and as inviting as possible, so as to

         10  generate the kind of street activity that retail

         11  establishments do.

         12                 MR. DEVINE:  That is our goal.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  My last point

         14  would be, and this really for the Committee members,

         15  you know this is the second DUMBO project you have

         16  had before you in the last couple of months, few

         17  months.  And you know, I do believe that the real

         18  answer is a comprehensive rezoning of the DUMBO

         19  neighborhood, rather than, you know, piece by piece

         20  by piece.  And I hope that the Committee members

         21  will join me in asking the City Planning Commission

         22  to proceed that way, rather than piece by piece by

         23  piece.  Because I think it is very hard to make

         24  judgements about the future of the community based

         25  on a parcel at a time.   And you know, if that is a
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          2  position you are put in, I guess you have got to

          3  say, you have got to deal with that.  But I really

          4  hope that the City Planning Commission will

          5  recognize that that is a better way to proceed.

          6                 And so I just wanted to put that

          7  notion before the Committee as well.  Chair Avella,

          8  I thank you for your indulgence, I know I have taken

          9  a great deal of time here.  But I feel it is an

         10  important project.  I really appreciate your

         11  indulgence.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Before I call on

         13  Council Member James, I just have a couple of points

         14  that I would like you to testify on the record for.

         15  In terms of vacating the cars off the park, what is

         16  your time table for when you would be able to do

         17  that?

         18                 MR. DEVINE:  Well it has been some

         19  time since we have gotten together with the Brooklyn

         20  Bridge Parks Development Corporation, and they have

         21  been able to give us a schedule.  The last, our

         22  current lease with the Port Authority expires in

         23  March of 1997, 2007, I'm 10 years behind, in 2007,

         24  in March of 2007.  The bill year in our application

         25  is 2006.  We have not done the engineering for this
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          2  project.  We have done all the architectural work

          3  and enough structural engineering, at this point, to

          4  know that it is feasible.  We have not yet done the

          5  engineering, so that is going to take some time, and

          6  construction will take some time.

          7                 Ideally, we would like to have a

          8  place to move our cars when our lease expires.

          9  Whether that will actually work out or not, we will

         10  just have to see.  But ideally that would be - -

         11                 MS. MEYERS:  So we will be looking at

         12  March of 2007 in that point.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Could you also,

         14  just briefly, go into the status of the properties

         15  in the other sections of Brooklyn that you would be

         16  vacating when and if this is a bill?

         17                 MR. DEVINE:  Sure, we have a large

         18  map of the area. And we have been, we have been

         19  commissioned by our governing body to reduce our

         20  footprint in Brooklyn, and we began to do that by

         21  selling our large shipping facility at 360 Furman

         22  Street.  So, we have reduced our square footage in

         23  Brooklyn by almost a million square feet.  Right now

         24  this is where the parking lot that we currently rent

         25  from the Port Authority is located.
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          2                 With the 360 being gone, our work

          3  centers, which are main administrative office

          4  buildings, and then our additional office buildings

          5  and support space, which is down in the DUMBO area

          6  there, constitute the major areas where our people

          7  are working. Currently, we have residence buildings

          8  all the way out here to the very south end of

          9  Brooklyn Heights, just a few blocks from Atlantic

         10  Avenue.

         11                 I don't have the ability right now to

         12  say, to commit to actual addresses, but the ideal

         13  thing for us is, if we go ahead and build here at 85

         14  Jay, it would be to consolidate to the north end of

         15  the Heights.  And we won't be able to accommodate

         16  all of our staff at 85 Jay, there will still be some

         17  buildings in the Heights. But we feel that quite a

         18  number could be made available for sale.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  And for those

         20  properties that you vacate, what would be the future

         21  status, or what is your intention?

         22                 MR. DEVINE:  Our intention would be

         23  to sell them on the open market, just like we

         24  acquired them.  Some of them currently have tenants

         25  that were in the building before they were acquired,
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          2  which are either rent control or rent stabilized.

          3  They would undoubtedly go with the buildings, if

          4  those were the buildings sold.  Other than that, we

          5  would vacate them.

          6                 MS. MEYERS:  Councilman, the one

          7  thing I would mention or add to that, is that almost

          8  all of these buildings are in historic districts.

          9  So, basically the structure and the integrity of the

         10  buildings will be intact, they will not be in new

         11  development sites.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         13  James.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  First, let me

         15  thank Councilman Avella and Councilwoman Katz in her

         16  absence for all the assistance that you have

         17  provided to Councilman Yassky and I in regards to

         18  this project, I really appreciate it.

         19                 And Councilman Yassky, I just want to

         20  thank you for your assistance in this project,

         21  though this particular project is in my district,

         22  this project will impact on your constituents

         23  greatly.

         24                 And I also want to thank the

         25  Community of DUMBO and Vinegar Hill.  I am new to
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          2  the community, new to the City Council, and I want

          3  to thank you for welcoming me into your community.

          4                 With that said, I recognize that the

          5  witnesses have basically exercised sound business

          6  decision, a business judgement by consolidating

          7  their operations all into one particular project.

          8  And it is interesting based on the last question

          9  that was asked by Councilman Avella, to know the

         10  status of your other buildings that you are

         11  interested in selling off some of your other

         12  inventory.

         13                 Are you currently in contract with

         14  any individual or entity with respect to the rest of

         15  your inventory?

         16                 MR. DEVINE:  No, we have not taken

         17  any positive steps in that regard.  We have not

         18  talked with anyone about it, because at this point,

         19  we are still waiting for approval to move ahead at

         20  85 Jay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Do you have

         22  any idea when you will get that approval, or is it

         23  conditioned upon 85 Jay?

         24                 MR. DEVINE:  You mean the approval to

         25  sell the --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

          3                 MR. DEVINE:  Well the approval that

          4  we are looking for at this time is from City Council

          5  to be able to move forward.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay.  And so

          7  I guess my question is, is the approval of City

          8  Council conditioned upon your decision to go forward

          9  with respect to selling off your footprint?

         10                 MR. DEVINE:  Pardon me?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Is one

         12  conditioned on the other?

         13                 MR. DEVINE:  Well what it would allow

         14  us to reduce our footprint and sell off buildings

         15  would be building at 85 Jay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, you

         17  answered the question.

         18                 As you know, I am in this heated

         19  battle right now, I am sure you have heard.  In

         20  fact, last night was a very, very heated joint

         21  Community Board meeting over a massive development

         22  in my district where I have taken a position where I

         23  am critiquing the project over its massive over

         24  development.  The fact that it is out of scale and

         25  out of context with the community.  And how it is
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          2  not considered the concerns of the local community.

          3                 And so, in this particular project,

          4  as you know, I too have raised concerns to you with

          5  regards to the heights of a lot of these buildings.

          6  And basically, the scale of this project. But

          7  Councilman Yassky and I have agreed to work

          8  together, and I look forward to hearing from the

          9  community as we go forward, and Congresswoman

         10  Velazquez, who has just joined us.

         11                 So at this point in time, I am going

         12  to wait until I hear from the community and confer

         13  with my colleagues, and Councilman Yassky, and will

         14  render a decision.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  We

         17  will now move to the public hearing aspect.  And I

         18  would first like to extend the courtesy, our first

         19  speaker, Congresswoman Velazquez.

         20                 CONGRESSWOMAN VELAZQUEZ:  Good

         21  morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the

         22  Subcommittee.  And especially I want to thank

         23  Council Member Yassky and Letitia James for your

         24  effort, all the work that you have done in a very

         25  responsible way.  And I am grateful to you because
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          2  as a representative of the 12th District, which

          3  encompasses DUMBO and part of Vinegar Hill, as you

          4  know, we have been in session in Washington, and we

          5  are going back into session in Washington to finish

          6  the people's business.  So it is really gratifying

          7  to know that while we are there trying to do the

          8  people's business, that we are well represented at

          9  the local level, and I am grateful to you.

         10                 Mr. Chairman, we are, I am here not

         11  only in my capacity of the representative of the

         12  12th District, which encompasses both DUMBO and part

         13  of Vinegar Hill, but I would also like to state for

         14  the record, that my views are not only, my own

         15  personal views, but that of Congressman Edolphus

         16  Towns, who also represents part of Vinegar Hill.

         17                 We are requesting that you reject the

         18  application by the Watch Tower Bible and Tract

         19  Society of New York, to rezone the 85 Jay Street

         20  block in DUMBO/Vinegar Hill, Brooklyn.  As our

         21  Congressional Districts share DUMBO and Vinegar

         22  Hill, we are deeply concerned that a proposed

         23  development is too large and will permanently damage

         24  the character of the neighborhood.

         25                 In 2000, after much work by local
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          2  groups, the DUMBO Historic District was added to the

          3  National Register of Historic Places, and the

          4  Vinegar Hill Neighborhood gained its New York City

          5  Landmarks Preservation Commission designation in

          6  1997.  However, this preservation protections were

          7  not implemented in time to prevent Watch Tower from

          8  raising a number of historic buildings, including PS

          9  7 and all the buildings on the block, which they are

         10  now seeking to rezone, bounded by Jay, Bridge, York,

         11  and Front Streets.

         12                 We, therefore, request that

         13  contextual rezoning be approved that fits the

         14  surrounding community.  At minimum, the building

         15  heights should not exceed the current maximum in the

         16  DUMBO and Vinegar Hill neighborhoods, which are 12

         17  stories on the DUMBO side and half of that on the

         18  Vinegar Hill side.

         19                 As it was mentioned before the

         20  Brooklyn Borough President came up with a reasonable

         21  compromise to restrict the heights, and on Jay

         22  Street and the Vinegar Hill side, which is lower in

         23  density.  And to reduce the bulk of the proposed

         24  project by approximately 60 percent, including the

         25  parking.
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          2                 We should note that there is almost

          3  as much parking proposed by the Watch Tower for this

          4  three- acreage site as IKEA is planning for a 22-

          5  acre site.  And as you know, this IKEA building is

          6  being proposed for the Red Hook Community, also in

          7  my district, and I considered this too much.

          8                 Nothing more expansive than the

          9  Brooklyn Borough President's recommendations should

         10  be accepted.  We also ask that any plan include

         11  ground level retail as requested by the DUMBO and

         12  Vinegar Hill neighborhood associations to activate

         13  the streets. This is critically important to

         14  restoring character and livelihood to the area given

         15  the location near the F Train subway stop, which

         16  serves as a gateway to the neighborhood.

         17                 I hope that you will take these

         18  concerns into consideration, especially given that

         19  the City Planning Commission and my colleagues on

         20  the City Council are considering initiating

         21  contextual rezoning for the area.  And I echo

         22  Councilman Yassky's petition to the City Council

         23  that this should be done in a comprehensive way

         24  while you are doing the rezoning for the entire

         25  area.
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          2                 One important aspect and component

          3  that we must take into account here is the lack of

          4  physical infrastructure in that area.

          5                 And with that, I thank you for the

          6  opportunity given to me this morning.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you,

          8  Congresswoman, we appreciate your taking the time to

          9  come down here and personally testify.

         10                 I would like the Sergeant- At- Arms

         11  to set the clock for two minutes for the speakers.

         12  I would ask that you try to be concise in your

         13  remarks, and if somebody has said the same thing

         14  before you, try and not repeat the same thing.  At

         15  some point, we do have a follow- up Committee going

         16  on in the Landmarks Committee, at which I have an

         17  important piece of legislation at that Committee.

         18  So, I hope to do this before I have to leave,

         19  otherwise, we may have to take a break.

         20                 We have four chairs up there, I am

         21  going to call panels of four at a time.  Nancy

         22  Webster, Amanda Barrow, JoAnne Simon and Kay

         23  Boecker.  Thank you, I am terrible at pronouncing

         24  names.  I am actually informed that the next

         25  Committee meeting is supposed to start in this room.
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          2    We have so many Committee meetings going on today.

          3

          4                 Nancy, do you want to start?  Two

          5  minutes please.

          6                 MS. WEBSTER:  Okay.  Thank you,

          7  Chairman Avella.  My name is Nancy Webster.  I am

          8  the President of the DUMBO Neighborhood Association.

          9                 So, let me begin by saying that DUMBO

         10  Neighborhood Association cares deeply about this

         11  application, that over three acres, the 85 Jay

         12  Street parcel is one of the largest pieces of

         13  undeveloped land in New York City, and it occupies a

         14  central and critical location in DUMBO directly

         15  across from the York Street Station.  As such, its

         16  development will have a tremendous effect on the

         17  character and vitality of DUMBO in the years ahead.

         18                 For the past year and a half we have

         19  consistently expressed two serious concerns with the

         20  project as presented by the applicant.  And while

         21  today, we are pleased that the applicant is

         22  beginning to respond to the community, those

         23  concerns remain. First the lack of street level

         24  retail deactivates Jay, Bridge, York, and Front

         25  Street the future heart of our neighborhood.  The
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          2  only subway station in DUMBO, the York Street stop

          3  on the F Line is located at the head of Jay Street

          4  directly across from the development parcel.  It is

          5  a long held Urban Planning principle that commercial

          6  activity should be centered around transportation

          7  points, such as subway stations, and under this

          8  proposal our streets and our subway station will be

          9  bordered by essentially dead walls.

         10                 Second, the towers are still too tall

         11  and out of context with the current build

         12  environment of DUMBO.  The bulk and the height of

         13  the buildings in the current proposal will overwhelm

         14  the scale of our historic waterfront neighborhoods.

         15  The tallest building immediately across Front Street

         16  from the project is 79 feet, and the tallest

         17  building across Bridge is 77.

         18                 The applicant points to the R- 9

         19  district immediately across Jay Street, and we are

         20  called upon to respond.  Simply put, this zoning,

         21  like Bridges is a mistake, and it is completely out

         22  of sync and out of scale with the rest of DUMBO.

         23  This non- contextual zoning is not something to

         24  emulate, but rather something to stop, and that is

         25  why we are here today.
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          2                 Consequently, we ask the Council to

          3  vote no on the current proposal, even with today's

          4  modifications to rezone 85 Jay Street, unless the

          5  following conditions are met:

          6                 We ask the Commission to adopt the

          7  Borough President's recommendation and reduce the

          8  bulk of the project to 60 percent of the current

          9  floor area, and to restrict the tower heights.  And

         10  if I may correct, Councilman Yassky, this is

         11  inclusive of setback, not exclusive, to 70 feet

         12  along Bridge and Front, that is an M1- 2 R6- A

         13  District, and 120 feet along Jay Street.  This

         14  project is not only two feet taller than the BP's

         15  the setbacks are 40 feet taller.  The BP's

         16  recommendations were inclusive of setback.

         17                 We ask for a commensurate reduction

         18  in parking, and we ask for the inclusion of street

         19  level retail or additional infrastructure

         20  improvements to activate our streets.

         21                 We do understand that the applicant

         22  has included a visitor center and reading room, we

         23  must question, however, the actual community benefit

         24  of these narrowly defined spaces.  And feel that the

         25  claim that they activate our streets is somewhat

                                                            62

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  disingenuous.

          3                 In summary, we repeat that this site

          4  is much, much more than a single building lot.  It

          5  is huge parcel, and its development will have an

          6  outside size effect on our neighborhood. Again, we

          7  note that City Planning has been preparing for a

          8  comprehensive rezoning, and we urge you to support

          9  that work here today on this huge site by voting no

         10  on the current proposal, and instead requiring a

         11  smaller, more contextual development of 85 Jay,

         12  which respects the scale, character, and vibrancy of

         13  DUMBO and Vinegar Hill.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Nancy, if I can?

         16    I don't want to put you on the spot, but one of

         17  the concerns that I keep hearing is the issue of the

         18  retail.

         19                 MS. WEBSTER: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I mean from my

         21  perspective we have a religious organization that

         22  owns a piece of property, that has said that based

         23  upon their religious beliefs they cannot enter into

         24  commercial agreements, have businesses.  So that is

         25  a real issue for them.  So, I take it that the
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          2  community still does not accept that as a legitimate

          3  answer to your concern.

          4                 MS. WEBSTER:  Yes, the community

          5  still hopes, given the size of the development

          6  parcel, obviously, if this were a single building

          7  lot, I think that that argument would have a lot

          8  more credence.  Given the size of the parcel, we

          9  still continue to hope that the witnesses can come

         10  up with some sort of creative solution to whether

         11  condoizing (sic) or selling off a portion of the lot

         12  to allow street level retail, particularly along the

         13  Jay Street Corridor.  Again, we feel it is incumbent

         14  upon the community to present what we feel is of

         15  most benefit to DUMBO, the greater whole.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  The only thing I

         17  would say is that if they were to do that, that

         18  would come out of what they can build on the site.

         19  It is not like they have an option.  If they do that

         20  then whatever they can build on the rest of the site

         21  is reduced by that amount.

         22                 MS. WEBSTER:  Indeed, we understand

         23  that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay.

         25                 MS. BARROW:  Good morning, my name is
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          2  Amanda Barrow, and I am an artist and property owner

          3  in Vinegar Hill adjacent to Farragut Housing in

          4  DUMBO.  I moved to the area from Boston

          5  approximately 14 months ago, and almost immediately

          6  after my arrival, jumped into the fire to begin the

          7  process for fighting the development known as 85 Jay

          8  Street.  There is significant and strong opposition

          9  to this project by my neighbors.  I know this

         10  because I personally mailed approximately 1,000

         11  postcards, which I hoped you enjoyed receiving.  I

         12  hope you like the color, and helped to get about 400

         13  folks in our neighborhood of artists and

         14  professionals to sign a petition against the

         15  project.  I don't think anyone expects to stop the

         16  Witnesses from building, we simply are hoping the

         17  project be at least contextual in its building

         18  heights and architecture in relation to the

         19  neighboring buildings.

         20                 No significant concessions have been

         21  made by the Witnesses to our neighborhood to

         22  compensate for what seems to me to be an excessive

         23  development project.  Compromises and suggestions

         24  our neighborhood has offered include the following

         25  12 items:
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          2                 1.  Street lighting program;

          3                 2.  Belgian block restoration;

          4                 3.  Bridge Park Two rehab;

          5                 4.  Height reduction to R6- A zoning

          6  throughout;

          7                 5.  York Street Subway Arts in

          8  Transit program support;

          9                 6.  Sale of piece of 85 Jay to

         10  neighborhood for retail;

         11                 7.  Courtyard open to neighborhood;

         12                 8.  Community use of meeting areas;

         13                 9.  Dining hall closed for one meal

         14  to encourage support of local restaurants;

         15                 10. A public YMCA- like fitness

         16  facility, non retailed based;

         17                 11. A firm commitment to support BID

         18  efforts;

         19                 12.  Reusing some of the other 33

         20  properties that they own in the area.

         21                 This project, if it goes through,

         22  will place a tremendous hardship on our

         23  neighborhood.  I invite any of you who have not been

         24  to Vinegar Hill, DUMBO to come take a walk in our

         25  neighborhood.  If you, when you come out of the York
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          2  Street subway stop, if you could imagine having a

          3  fortress- like building right on the corner when you

          4  come out, that is what you will be seeing, if the

          5  witnesses are able to build their towers.

          6                 While I do appreciate how the

          7  architects of this project tried to create an open

          8  and light building, I believe this is a small

          9  effort.  My neighbors and I please ask you to not

         10  support the rezoning of 85 Jay Street.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

         13                 MS. SIMON:  Yes, good morning.  My

         14  name is JoAnne Simon, and I am the Democratic

         15  District Leader for the 52nd Assembly District.  And

         16  I am testifying in opposition to the proposal as it

         17  currently is, although, I am very, very pleased to

         18  see a number of the significant modifications that

         19  the witnesses have proposed, and I think we are

         20  really getting some traction on a good revision to

         21  this.

         22                 I also want to thank the Council, and

         23  Council Member James and Council Member Yassky for

         24  their work on this project.

         25                 I have already emailed my testimony,
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          2  and I would just like to say, because I don't want

          3  to repeat everybody else, that I agree entirely that

          4  we need to use contextual zoning, and to have a

          5  comprehensive rezoning effort in this area, it is

          6  key.

          7                 These are neighborhoods that really

          8  understand the value of private individuals changing

          9  the status quo in an environment.  They really

         10  exemplify that.  And I think that this is a group of

         11  people that work very carefully and very

         12  productively with the Council and with City Planning

         13  to effectuate rezoning that actually works for

         14  everybody.

         15                 In the meantime, this proposal is

         16  really not a building, it is really more like a

         17  campus.  And it really is huge in terms of its scale

         18  and its scope.  And I think fortress was a very good

         19  description.  So, I would like to see additional

         20  reductions.  I would like to see the Borough

         21  President's recommendations adopted as the proposal

         22  for this site, especially including the street level

         23  retail.  I am sure there some very clever way of

         24  getting around the leasing issue, if people put

         25  their minds to it.  I don't know what that is, but I
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          2  am sure that it can be done.  And I have a lot of

          3  confidence in you, Council member, to be able to

          4  come up with a solution for that.

          5                 And also, this issue about traffic

          6  and parking, the massive parking that is proposed

          7  for this project, is simply too much.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MS. BOECKER:  Good morning, and thank

         10  you very much for your time.  My name is Kay

         11  Boecker, and I also strongly oppose the application

         12  submitted to rezone 85 Jay Street.  I am a resident

         13  taxpayer of Vinegar Hill, and I fully agree with my

         14  neighbors and Borough President Marty Markowitz, who

         15  also opposed this plan as it is.  And i share their

         16  concerns regarding the plan height, the density, and

         17  the lack of retail.

         18                 Nonetheless, I would like to focus on

         19  the impact of the proposed 1,100- car parking

         20  facility.  If you have taken the time to walk around

         21  the proposed site, you know that the entrance and

         22  exit to this proposed 1,100- car facility is on a

         23  small, one way, residential cobblestone street.  I

         24  cannot understand how anyone could even consider

         25  this is a possibility in the middle of our
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          2  residential community.  And I also don't understand

          3  why it is constantly being referred to as a public

          4  parking facility.

          5                 To paint a picture, let's assume

          6  unrealistically that only half of the cars on a

          7  given day are used.  This would still mean that over

          8  the course of a regular day, 550 cars would at some

          9  point enter and at some point leave this parking

         10  facility. Given our small, one- way streets, this

         11  amounts to an increase of 1,100 cars traveling

         12  around a one- square- block.

         13                 We can safely assume that all of

         14  these vehicles will not be traveling in and out at

         15  regularly spaced intervals.  There are also stop

         16  signs, traffic lights, and cross traffic to contend

         17  with, which will keep things from flowing smoothly

         18  and clog our streets.  The current application is

         19  intended to allow proposed 2,400- seat auditorium in

         20  addition to the four dormitory towers. And it is my

         21  understanding that the Watch Tower's World

         22  Headquarters, they anticipate approximately 60,000

         23  visitors annually.

         24                 During peak times of travel, say

         25  before and after the events at the auditorium, we
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          2  would have traffic jams on our small streets that

          3  would certainly rival those that we concurrently

          4  witness on the Brooklyn Queens Expressway.  These

          5  traffic jams will create increased noise pollution

          6  in our neighborhood, as well as generally decrease

          7  our air quality.

          8                 Furthermore, I would like to add that

          9  all this traffic will put an additional strain on

         10  our streets and our street surfaces.  And repairs

         11  will eventually come out of taxpayer dollars, of

         12  which the Witnesses, the applicant are exempt.

         13                 The vacant 85 Jay Street lot is the

         14  largest next to Ground Zero, and accordingly the

         15  development deserves the fitting amount of community

         16  consideration it has already received.  I ask that

         17  the applicant be held to the same standards as any

         18  other developer asking for a variance of this

         19  proportion.

         20                 I am a resident, owner, and taxpayer,

         21  and while I appreciate the few changes that have

         22  been so far, I strongly am still against this

         23  proposal.  I hope that the crane that has already

         24  arrived at the 85 Jay Street lot is no indication of

         25  the outcome of the City Council vote today.  And I
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          2  urge you to vote no on any proposal that does not

          3  include the Borough President Marty Markowitz's

          4  recommendations.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  The

          7  next panel is in favor, Robert Sumpter and Irene

          8  McKinnon.

          9                 MS. MCKINNON:  My name is Irene

         10  McKinnon, and I have been a resident at 111 Bridge

         11  Street for 43 years.  And I really appreciate living

         12  around that area.  And that area has had some major

         13  changes since I have been living around there, and I

         14  am sure the Watch Tower Building is not going to

         15  make any less changes, it is going to improve the

         16  way of life for people around that area. Because it

         17  is going to be nice and quiet, and it is going to be

         18  representative for people to come and go.  And it is

         19  not going to stop any other kind of thing, any other

         20  issues that are here today.

         21                 So it is going to be very pleasant to

         22  be around.

         23                 MR. SUMPTER:  My name is Robert

         24  Sumpter, and I have been living in the Farragut

         25  Houses, 192 Sand Street since 1966. And I have seen
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          2  changes in the community, and much improvement,

          3  especially now with the buildings.  And also from

          4  bad times, traveling from 192 Sand Street to the A

          5  Train used to be a dangerous trip.  But with the

          6  Watch Tower Building there and the light, and the

          7  presence of that building, they have cut down crime,

          8  and also you feel safer traveling in that direction.

          9                 Now on the other side, there is the F

         10  Train, and it is in a dark location, a location that

         11  does need improvements.  And so I can see much

         12  improvement, especially in that area with

         13  individuals that care about people, and that will

         14  guard that area in the sense of seeing even late at

         15  night.

         16                 Now other places that might be built

         17  there, would at times close down, and the activity

         18  of individuals in the neighborhood would be

         19  dangerous still.  But I can see the improvements in

         20  that building being there, and individuals that,

         21  especially on a 24- hour basis guard that area.

         22  Making individuals coming out from that direction of

         23  the projects, feeling safer and better.  And

         24  individuals that we talk to, even kind of like

         25  follow that, and they can see that it will be an
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          2  improvement.  And they even voice that when we talk

          3  to them.

          4                 So looking at if from that angle,

          5  from the angle of the projects where many

          6  individuals live, and their lives are in danger,

          7  they see this as an improvement for them to walk to

          8  the F Train feeling safe.  So for safety measures

          9  that is wonderful.

         10                 But the beauty of it all, also it

         11  improves the neighborhood also, just as we have seen

         12  with the other buildings of the Watch Tower Bible

         13  and Tract Society.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  Next

         15  panel is Ans Heerdink, Nicholas Evans- Cato, Karen

         16  Johnson, Bill Nogoseh.

         17                 MS. HEERDINK:  Good morning.  My name

         18  is Ans Heerdink.  I am a resident of Vinegar Hill,

         19  as well as the treasurer of the Vinegar Hill

         20  Neighborhood Association.  I am speaking on behalf

         21  of many of our neighbors who could not all take time

         22  out like myself, to be here this morning.

         23                 First of all, I would like to thank

         24  you for giving us the opportunity to speak here

         25  today.  And as you requested, Mr. Avella, I will not
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          2  be repetitious.  I disapprove, I will not go into

          3  all the reasons why, to shorten the time and give

          4  others a chance to speak, as well.  So, rather than

          5  being repetitious, I would still like to add a few

          6  thoughts and comments.

          7                 Vinegar Hill has fought many of

          8  battles in the past, and by the way, just like the

          9  Irish did in 1798 back in Ireland, hence the name of

         10  our neighborhood, we have won some, we have lost

         11  some.  A major battle that we fought was for

         12  preservation, we have won that one.  It resulted in

         13  historic district designation in 1997.  This is one

         14  of the reasons why our neighborhood is so desirable

         15  today, and why all this new development is also

         16  going on. It is really the character of what we have

         17  preserved and fought so hard for.

         18                 So I would like to please urge you to

         19  join us in our fight so that literally and

         20  figuratively speaking, no shadow will be cast onto

         21  our previous and current efforts towards

         22  preservation and quality- of- life issues in Vinegar

         23  Hill, as well as in DUMBO.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. EVANS- CATO:  Good morning and
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          2  thank you.  My name is Nicholas Evans- Cato.  I am

          3  the President of the Vinegar Hill Neighborhood

          4  Association.  Since you got my statement for the

          5  record, let me just briefly extend some of the

          6  points.

          7                 I believe my colleague, Nancy Webster

          8  from DNA alluded to this, and something that does

          9  need to be double checked. An R6- A bulk and height

         10  limitation would be something under around 70 feet.

         11  That is not what is currently being proposed today,

         12  which is 82 feet plus a 30- foot setback, a

         13  significant difference there.

         14                 What my neighbors are calling for is

         15  a height limitation following R6- A limits on the

         16  Vinegar Hill  Bridge Street elevation, and an R- 8

         17  height limit on the Jay Street DUMBO side of this

         18  lot.  A lot of people have looked at the Light

         19  Bridges Rezoning at 100 Jay Street, which is

         20  directly across the street from this parcel, as a

         21  precedent for the height that Watch Tower is looking

         22  for.  In fact, in my opinion, and the opinion of my

         23  neighbors, these can hardly be two different uses of

         24  property that are so close to each other.  Light

         25  Bridges, for one, would have included real public
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          2  parking, will include real public parking when it is

          3  built.  And it will include retail at the street

          4  level.

          5                 Now understandably if retail is

          6  something that ends up remaining off the table in

          7  these further negotiations, certainly you are aware

          8  that the height of these towers remains open to

          9  discussion.  And we really do hope that there is

         10  room for further negotiation here for something that

         11  is really contextual to the neighborhood.

         12                 Finally, what we want is essentially

         13  what City Planning for some reason thinks we have

         14  already been given.  These amenities that are being

         15  offered, the reading room and the upgrade to Bridge

         16  Parks One and Two need to be seen in the context

         17  that Bridge park Two is a favorite softball field

         18  for Watch Tower members themselves, which is, of

         19  course, wonderful.  And as it regards to basketball

         20  courts in Bridge Park One, as the Farragut residents

         21  here, I am sure can second this, the basketball that

         22  has just been rebuilt there said to open within a

         23  week or two.  And Felheimer, Wagner, and Volmer, the

         24  firm that designed the Farragut Houses in 1949,

         25  actually took a lot of credit for only using 11
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          2  percent of that footprint, everything else is

          3  residential space. The towers only occupy that much

          4  of the actual grand plan.  So there really is plenty

          5  of recreational space to go around.

          6                 My statement is on the record, and I

          7  thank you for your consideration.

          8                 MS. JOHNSON:  Hello, my name is Karen

          9  Johnson, and I am not only a resident, but also a

         10  business owner in DUMBO, and my concern lies with

         11  the character of the neighborhood, which is changing

         12  rapidly as we all know.  But I am dependent on the

         13  character of our neighborhood, and it is very

         14  unique, industrial quality, by the water, gorgeous

         15  place to be, to draw people in and help my business.

         16    And I just really think that this is really going

         17  to alter the character in the neighborhood in just

         18  an amazingly, it is huge, the project is huge.

         19                 I think coming out of the subway

         20  station with that facing you, our neighborhood is

         21  not so appealing, and I just ask you to please vote

         22  against the project.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MR. NOGOSEH:  Good afternoon, I

         25  believe it is.  My name is Bill Nogoseh, and I am
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          2  speaking against this variance proposal in favor of

          3  Marty Markowitz's proposal.

          4                 What we should be doing today is

          5  discussing a proposal to convert the 117 Adam Street

          6  complex which is owned by the Witnesses, and is

          7  about a block and a half up on all their plans,

          8  recently vacated when the printing plans were moved

          9  upstate, that should be where we should be talking

         10  about these residential spaces to be built.  Also we

         11  should planning the construction of parking, visitor

         12  assembly hall, the visitor center assembly hall and

         13  cafeteria in the lot, now a car park on the corner

         14  of Front and York Streets.  It is already zoned R-

         15  6, and the Witnesses own that also, they have owned

         16  it for years.  And/or the use of the 30 plus other

         17  buildings currently Watch Tower own that would allow

         18  this religious group to both consolidate their

         19  residential and community use without interference

         20  and disruption of regular DUMBO live/work activity.

         21                 But instead we have this gross,

         22  fortress proposal before you which maximizes the

         23  interference and adds tremendous, severe burdens on

         24  the growing DUMBO infrastructure.  All signs point

         25  to a different agenda really happening here.  The
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          2  systematic DX session of these properties, of the

          3  Jehovah Witness properties, not in the name of

          4  religion, but in the interest of profit.

          5                 There is only time today to talk

          6  about one of these little examples, the request for

          7  the 1,100 car- park, unpublic (sic) parking lot on

          8  this proposal.  Nowhere in the Old or New Testament

          9  will you find evidence of a divine right for

         10  parking, even if your name is Richard Devine, there

         11  is no divine right for parking.  So it is absurd as

         12  a religious request.  But, look at it this way, you

         13  are a developer.  What a character dangle when real

         14  estate sharks come and ask about possible purchasing

         15  it.  As the 117 Adams project, as their hotel on Jay

         16  Street, which is empty.  This is a ready made plum

         17  waiting for the highest bidder, when they get it,

         18  when they decide to sell.

         19                 I will submit these.  Again, no on

         20  the proposal; yes, on Mr. Markowitz's amendments.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

         22                 MS. WHETTEN:  Good morning.  I am a

         23  resident and property owner in Vinegar Hill, here to

         24  voice my strong objection to the plans proposed for

         25  85 Jay Street.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Identify

          3  yourself by name for the record?

          4                 MS. WHETTEN:  My name is Michelle

          5  Whetten.  While claims have been made that the Watch

          6  Tower has been responsive to the community's

          7  concerns about the development, the truth is that

          8  the concessions, even those presented today, have

          9  been nominal with little impact on the heights,

         10  parking, and the street activity.

         11                 And I would like to point out that

         12  let's not confuse street wall with building height,

         13  it has been mentioned by a couple of people.  The

         14  proposal presented at City Planning was 120 feet on

         15  Jay Street, and by my calculations, the proposal

         16  presented today is 112 feet on Bridge Street, excuse

         17  me, so we are only talking about an 8- foot

         18  reduction in building heights, not a 40 or 50- foot

         19  reduction as we have been led to believe.

         20                 And while the neighborhood will enjoy

         21  a rehabilitated Bridge Park, it in not way

         22  compensates the neighborhood or its residents for

         23  the hardship caused by the development.  And with

         24  regards to the path, potential path running to the

         25  park for the Farragut residents to get to the
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          2  subway, anyone who walks along York Street knows

          3  that Farragut residents already have the ability to

          4  walk through the park to get to the subway station

          5  quite easily.

          6                 The majority of buildings in DUMBO,

          7  particularly on the eastern edge are six stories and

          8  lower.  Granting R- 8 zoning for this site would

          9  only entice other property owners to go after

         10  similar R- 8 zoning, and it would make it much more

         11  difficult to justify turning such requests down.

         12  And very quickly, the unique character of this

         13  neighborhood would be destroyed.

         14                 The Light Bridges project has been

         15  cited throughout the ULURP process as precedent

         16  setting for this site.  This project, unfortunately,

         17  moved through ULURP in October 2001, at a time when

         18  residents were not exactly mobilizing against

         19  development projects.   The project does not

         20  represent good planning, and certainly does not fit

         21  within the context of the neighborhood. Nonetheless,

         22  its one redeeming aspect is it will contain

         23  extensive retail on the street level.  Light Bridges

         24  should be considered an unfortunate exception, not

         25  the rule for development.

                                                            82

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 This is an opportunity to set a new

          3  responsible precedent for the development of DUMBO.

          4  DUMBO is a prime candidate for future, comprehensive

          5  rezoning and historic district designation.  Out of

          6  character rezoning one parcel at a time, has and

          7  will continue to rapidly diminish its character.

          8                 MS. NYBERG:  Hi, my name is Christy

          9  Nyberg, and over the past year I have had the

         10  opportunity to meet many of you to discuss 85 Jay

         11  Street.  I thank you for your time then and now.  I

         12  have also met an overwhelming number of my

         13  neighbors, and it must be said that where time had

         14  to be given, they have extraordinarily generous.

         15  They have educated themselves on basic ULURP

         16  procedure, contextual zoning, landmarks, historic

         17  districts, precedents and neighborhood history.

         18  They/we have done this so that we could speak to you

         19  in terms that make sense, but the heart of the

         20  matter is, this plan isn't right for our

         21  neighborhoods.

         22                 DUMBO, Vinegar Hill and Farragut

         23  residents have unanimously expressed opposition to

         24  these plans on the grounds that the buildings are

         25  too tall.  There will be no retail, and there will
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          2  be too many cars.  Since each of these points have

          3  been covered by fellow people here today, I will not

          4  repeat them.

          5                 I will have, or give you a few

          6  numbers in terms of parking.  We are concerned about

          7  trucks, buses and cars clogging our streets and our

          8  air.  For perspective, the IKEA parking lot, which

          9  the Congresswoman mentioned earlier, proposes to top

         10  out at 1,400 spaces on a 22- acre site.  This is

         11  also with finance street improvements.  The 85 Jay

         12  Street proposal calls for 1,100 spaces on a three

         13  and one- half acre site, with no contribution to

         14  infrastructure maintenance, much less improvements.

         15  Unfortunately, we don't drive our cars on the

         16  basketball courts.

         17                 If I could recount the hours spent

         18  speaking with residents, it might make you think of

         19  days spent campaigning. Literally canvassing all

         20  three neighborhoods, handing out flyers and having

         21  conversations.  And while I didn't meet the only two

         22  people I have ever heard testify in opposition to

         23  this plan today, I have to say, it was great to be

         24  greeted with unanimous supports. I do not approve of

         25  these plans, and I hope that you will not either.
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          2  Please approve anything that is in line with Marty

          3  Markowitz's plans, and those only.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MS. ORTIZ:  My name is Magdalena

          6  Ortiz.  I am a DUMBO resident.  And as we all know,

          7  the Jehovah Witnesses Group have a been a great

          8  neighbor, great Brooklyn neighbors, and we for sure

          9  will welcome them at 85 Jay Street, as long as they

         10  know how to respect the current zoning laws.

         11                 Also, I just wanted to mention that

         12  if you were to do an official survey in the

         13  neighborhood, you will find that the majority of

         14  people does not support massive structures.  And I

         15  truly believe that we can all share and enjoy this

         16  amazing neighborhood, as long as we all know how to

         17  respect and maintain its beauty without altering the

         18  current zoning laws.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MS. CRAIG:  Good morning.  My name is

         21  Joan Craig. I have been a resident of Brooklyn

         22  Heights and Fulton Ferry Landing since 1972.  The

         23  first thing I want to do is thank the members of the

         24  Committee, and particularly Chair Tony Avella for

         25  the great consideration and thoughtfulness with

                                                            85

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  which you have approached the issues facing our

          3  neighborhood, I appreciate it.  You have to

          4  reconcile a myriad of different interests.

          5                 I have thought a lot about this, and

          6  I have come out the same way my neighbors do.  I

          7  would urge you to disapprove the proposal unless and

          8  until it conforms with the bulk in size restrictions

          9  set forth in Marty Markowitz's disapproval with

         10  conditions of September 9th.

         11                 Even if modified the project is too

         12  tall, it would be totally out of scale with the

         13  surrounding neighborhood, and it would impose an

         14  undue burden on the DUMBO, Vinegar Hill communities,

         15  while not providing the economic benefits that would

         16  ordinarily help to offset that burden.  It would

         17  introduce over a thousand residents who would live

         18  in a self- contained community that does not support

         19  the local community, at large.

         20                 I think the only way, while we

         21  welcome them, I think they have to scale down the

         22  size and bulk of their project and the parking to

         23  that set forth by Marty Markowitz.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  If
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          2  there is no one else signed up to speak on this

          3  item, I will close the public hearing.

          4                 MR. LEFKOWITZ:  I will be quite

          5  brief.  Just to dispel a few possible

          6  misunderstandings.  The witnesses have been in

          7  Downtown Brooklyn, DUMBO and the Heights for almost

          8  a century. This project is not an expansion of the

          9  Witnesses presence in the Heights, it is a

         10  continuation.  The people that will be living in 85

         11  Jay Street already live in the neighborhood or live

         12  in the Heights.  There is no expansion, indeed, I

         13  have been told that there is potentially a small

         14  contraction, since certain printing operations have

         15  been moved Upstate.  These are not new people, these

         16  are people who already live in the area.

         17                 In terms of the parking, I would like

         18  to make it clear, because I think there are a few

         19  misconceptions.  There is not one entrance to the

         20  parking, there are two entrances.  One of them is on

         21  York Street, nobody lives on York Street.  It backs

         22  up to the Brooklyn Queens Expressway and also to the

         23  park.  It is one of the reasons why they have chosen

         24  this.  As mentioned the cars have to be moved off

         25  the piers to allow Brooklyn Bridge Park to be
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          2  developed.  Witnesses do not use the cars during the

          3  day, they walk to work.  They are working, their

          4  offices and work places are within walking distance

          5  of 85 Jay Street.  There is not a lot of traffic

          6  that is going to be created.  The cars are used

          7  principally in the evening and the weekends, when

          8  Witnesses who are ordained ministers and volunteers

          9  drive out to congregations in the Metropolitan area.

         10    It is not traffic during the day, it just will not

         11  happen.

         12                 In fact, by moving the cars here,

         13  cars will be moved out of the Heights where they now

         14  have to traverse rather complicated route to get to

         15  the exits to go out to the Island, or get across to

         16  other parts of the Metropolitan area.

         17                 And finally on the retail, I am not

         18  sure that there is anything remaining to be said.

         19  This is a religious organization, and they do not

         20  approve of commercial activities on their premises.

         21  They really cannot do that.  I think it is something

         22  that should be respected.

         23                 Someone referred to this proposed

         24  development as a campus type, and I think that is a

         25  fair analogy.  And I would refer people, refer
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          2  members of the Committee to two comparisons that

          3  come to my mind, one is the Union Theological

          4  Seminary, which is up in Morningside Heights, and

          5  one is the General Theological Seminary, which is in

          6  Chelsea.  They are both full blocks, they are both

          7  campus types, they both have courtyards within.

          8  They don't have commercial.  I think the General

          9  Theological in Chelsea has a book store, which is

         10  their book store, selling, I think, materials which

         11  they generally find compatible, and it will not be

         12  unlike the book store and gallery type space that

         13  the Witnesses have agreed to provide on Jay Street.

         14                 And finally, I would like to say with

         15  reference to the many references to the Borough

         16  President's plan.  I mean we have discussed this,

         17  actively.  I am an attorney representing the

         18  Witnesses here, I should have said that when I

         19  started, I am sorry. My name is Stephen Lefkowitz, I

         20  am from the Firm of Fried, Frank, and I do represent

         21  the Witnesses on this project.  The Borough

         22  President's plan is simply not a viable plan.  It

         23  will not work for this project, it will not work for

         24  the Watch Tower Society.

         25                 On the present site without any
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          2  rezoning they are permitted to put, I believe, 960

          3  cars in a parking garage.  They do not want to put a

          4  parking garage on the site, they want to put the

          5  cars underground, out of site, and they want to

          6  build on the site, instead.  What I would think

          7  people would fairly say is a quite attractive, quite

          8  thoughtful, residence, assembly hall for religious

          9  purposes.  It is not an auditorium, it is like a

         10  church. They call it an Assembly Hall in the

         11  Witnesses.  And a dining hall, which will permit

         12  them to continue their communal life style, which

         13  includes communal meals.

         14                 That is what this is about, and that

         15  is what this project is intended to serve.  Thanks

         16  very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  I

         18  will say once again, if there is nobody else signed

         19  up to speak, I will close the public hearing on this

         20  item.  And the vote on this item, as well as the

         21  first item of the agenda is laid over till Thursday

         22  morning at 9:30, we will be across the street at

         23  City Hall, in the Committee Room.  Thank you, ladies

         24  and gentlemen.

         25                 (Hearing adjourned at 11:40 a.m.)
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